
Village of Libertyville Police Pension Fund
Request for Proposal (RFP)

Investment Advisory/Management Services

1. Introduction

The Board of Trustees (Trustees) of the Village of Libertyville Police Pension Fund (Pension Fund) is
requesting proposals from investment advisers to manage a portion of the assets of the Village of Libertyville
Police Pension Fund, as described in Section 2 below. The Village is not seeking Investment Consultant
Services at this time.

During the evaluation process, the Trustees reserve the right, where it may serve the Pension Fund’s best
interest, to request additional information or clarification from proposers, or to allow corrections of errors or
omissions. At the discretion of the Trustees, firms submitting proposals may be requested to make oral
presentations. All costs incurred with the submission of proposals are solely those of the proposer. The
Trustees and/or Police Pension Fund will not reimburse any expenses of proposers.

If you have any questions or communications pertaining to this Request for Proposal (RFP), please contact:
Patrice Sutton
Director of Finance/Treasurer
Village of Libertyville
118 West Cook
Libertyville IL 60048
psutton@libertyville.com

Questions must be submitted in writing; email is an acceptable means. Please provide a return email address
and phone number for responses.

2. Description of the Pension Fund

The Village of Libertyville Police Pension Fund is a single-employer defined benefit pension plan that covers
all sworn police personnel, governed by Illinois Compiled Statutes (40 ILCS 5/3-1). The fund is governed by a
five-member pension board. As of April 30, 2016, the Fund’s membership consisted of 35 inactive plan
members currently receiving benefits, 3 inactive plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits, and
38 active plan members. As of December 31, 2016, the Fund has total assets of approximately $28.8 Million.
This RFP is strictly limited to the approximately $12 million portion invested in fixed income investments.

3. Delivery of Proposals

Please submit proposals by email in PDF format to the Contact. If you wish to supply physical copies in
addition to the PDF, send seven copies to the Contact; however, this is not required. The proposals must be

received by 5:00 p.m. on April 7, 2017 to be considered. It is anticipated that investment management
would begin July 1, 2017.

4. Requirements for Investment Advisor/Manager

I. Investment Advisor/ Manager:
Section 5/1-101.4 of the Pension Code defines an Investment Manager/Advisor as follows:

A) Is a fiduciary appointed by the pension board in accordance with Section 1-109.1 of the Pension
Code;



B) Has the power to manage, acquire, or dispose of any asset of the pension fund;
C) Acknowledges in writing that he or she is a fiduciary with respect to the pension fund;
D) Is at least one of the following: (i) A registered investment advisor under the Federal Investment
Advisors Act of 1940, (ii) Registered as an investment advisor under the Illinois Security Law of
1953, (iii) a bank as defined in the Investment Advisor Act of 1940, or (iv) An insurance company
authorized to transact business in the state of Illinois.

II. Requirements for Written Agreement between Pension Board and Manager/Advisor

Pursuant to Section 5/1-113.5(b), all investment advice and services provided by an investment advisor
appointed under this provision must be rendered pursuant to a written contract between the investment advisor
and the Board of Trustees. The contract must include all of the following:

A) Acknowledgment in writing by the investment advisor/manager that he or she is a fiduciary with
respect to the assets of the pension fund;
B) Acknowledgment of the board’s investment policy, which should be incorporated into the
agreement as an appendix;
C) Full disclosure of direct and indirect fees, commissions, penalties, and any other compensation that
may be received by the investment advisor/manager, including reimbursement for expenses and
including such fees, commissions, penalties or other compensation paid by or on behalf of the
investment adviser in connection with the provision of services to the pension fund;
D) A requirement that the investment advisor/manager submit periodic written reports on at least a
quarterly basis, reporting all returns on investments, net returns after payment of all fees, commissions
and other compensation; and
E) A requirement that the investment/manager update the disclosure concerning fees promptly after
modification of those fees, commissions, penalties or any other payments.
F) An Illinois Law governing provision.

5. Request for Proposals Response Format

The purpose of this proposal is to demonstrate the qualifications, competence, and capacity of the firms
seeking to provide investment management services to the Village of Libertyville Police Pension Fund in
conformity with the requirements of this request for proposal. As such, the substance of proposals will carry
more weight than their form or manner of presentation. However, the presentation will be considered as an
example of the type of work typical of that of the firm. The proposal should demonstrate the qualifications of
the firm and of the particular staff to be assigned to this engagement.

All responses to this RFP must follow the following format:

A. Firm Information
1. Name of Firm
2. Address
3. Name, telephone number, email address and title of individual with authority to commit firm.
4. Name, telephone number, email address and title of contract individual.

B. Description of Organization
1. Name of Asset Management Organization
2. Firm

a) The year the firm was founded.
b) List specific municipal or government accounts currently under management:

(i) Specifically highlight Illinois Police and Fire Pension Fund accounts, and
(ii) Specifically detail the total market value of the relationship and the market values
of the fixed income and equity portions, and (iii) Highlight the number of years the
firm has worked with the Fund.



c) Number of Illinois Police and Fire Pension Fund accounts that have terminated their
relationship with your firm in the last 10 years.

3. Portfolio Managers, Relationship Managers and Administrators who would have primary
responsibility for the management of this account.

a) Name(s) and Title(s)
b) Provide biographies of these key personnel.
c) Number of accounts under management for the portfolio manager and assigned to the
administrator.
d) Years of personal Illinois Police and Fire Pension Fund management experience.
e) Provide the names, responsibilities and tenure of key members of the Illinois Police and
Fire Pension Fund management team that have left the firm within the last 3 years.
f) Who will represent your firm at pension board meetings?

4. Describe any special expertise and experience your firm has in providing investment advisory
services to fire and police pension funds in Illinois.
5. Discuss your firm’s insurance coverage.
6. Describe the competitive advantage your firm enjoys over its competitors.

C. Business Arrangements

1. List brokers executing more than 10% of your dollar volume over the last 12 months and disclose
their percentages.
2. Please disclose and describe all sources of income you receive in connection with investment
advisory services to pension funds, either direct or indirect. What third parties will you receive
compensation from, including, but not limited to, commissions, 12(b) (1) fees, referral fees, etc.?
3. Discuss recommendations for custody. Are you affiliated with this custodian? Do you receive any
compensation for this custodian in regard to this client? Are any custodian services delegated to other
firms? Itemize all costs that would be incurred by the Fund should it choose to take your
recommendations in regard to custody. Describe the ramifications if the Fund prefers to maintain its
custodial agreement with PNC.
4. Does your firm practice in any underwriting activities, either direct or in arrangements with other
financial institutions? Please disclose what bonds or stocks in your current portfolios is the result of
such transactions and explain what fees or compensation your firm receives in such transactions.
5. Include with your response the proposed specimen investment advisory agreement for Article 3
and 4 fire and police pension boards.

D. Investment Procedures and Approaches

1. Briefly describe the philosophy and methodology of your security selection for fixed income. If you
feel any of the more common investment “styles” apply to your philosophy, please so indicate.
2. Describe your capabilities in developing, implementing and modifying investment guidelines and
objectives. What limit would you suggest for maximum issuer exposure?
3. To what extent does your firm manage individual bonds, as opposed to choosing other managers as
sub-advisors?

E. Investment Performance

1. Please submit composite performance data for the last one-year, three-year, and five-year and ten-
year periods ending December 31, 2016. Also, provide performance for each full year your firm has
managed Illinois Police and Fire Funds through December 31, 2016. Please provide equity and fixed
income composite performance separately. Specify if these returns comply with CFA Institute - GIPS
performances presentation standards. Fixed income returns should include accrued interest. Indicate
the composition of the composite and compare the composite performance against the appropriate
market index/benchmark. The composite should contain ONLY Illinois Police and Fire Fund accounts



managed by your firm. Disclose if any Illinois Police and Fire Pension Funds clients were left out of
the composite. If so, why were they left out?
2. Please provide an example of your reporting format for quarterly meetings.
3. How much flexibility is there in your reporting format? Can reports be customized at the Pension
Board’s request? Are there charges for such changes? Within what time frame can requested changes
in reporting be made, i.e., at the beginning of the relationship only or anytime changes are needed?
Are reports available in electronic format?
4. Describe the benchmark that your firm feels the portfolio should be managed against and why.
5. What would be your expected incremental pre-fee total return versus the benchmark?

F. Fees

1. What is your proposed fee structure, including start-up fees, annual fees, and all other fees?
2. Provide a detailed description of the services to be provided in exchange for the proposed fees?
3. Attach a sample investment contract with fee schedule.

G. Miscellaneous

1. Please provide a list of at least five Illinois Police and Fire Pension Fund client references with
contact names, addresses, email addresses and telephone numbers.
2. Please provide a list of formal complaints, sanctions, or litigation against your firm in the last five
years.
3. Has your firm, its principal or affiliate ever (i) been the subject of a non-routine Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) inquiry or investigation or a similar inquiry or investigating for any
similar federal, state or self-regulatory body or organization (ii) been a party to any litigation
concerning fiduciary responsibility to other investment related matters, or (iii) submitted a claim to
your errors and omissions, fiduciary, liability, and/or fidelity bond insurance carrier(s)? If yes to any,
please provide details.
4. Provide a list of any/or all affiliates with financial institutions, insurance companies, mutual funds,
and/or brokerage firm. Please provide a description of each affiliation.
5. Please state whether you are willing to acknowledge that you are a fiduciary of the pension fund as
defined in the 40 ILCS 5/1 – 101.2, Illinois Statutes.
6. Please state whether you agree that the venue for any judicial proceeding shall be the State of
Illinois.
7. If requested, what other services could your firm provide (on-site training, etc.) for trustees and
staff?
8. Specify how your firm will handle transfer of assets if you will not be using our current custodian.
Describe how your firm will assist in transition management.

Pursuant to 40 ILCS Section 5/1-110(d) of the Illinois Pension Code, the manager shall not knowing cause or
advise the Pension Fund to engage in an investment transaction when the investment manager has any direct
interest in the income, gains, or profits of the investment adviser through which the investment transaction is
made or has a business relationship with that investment adviser that would result in a pecuniary benefit to the
investment manager as a result of the investment transaction.

2017 Meeting Schedule (Allen H. Schertz Municipal Building, 200 East Cook Avenue, 3:00 p.m.)
January 10, 2017 April 11, 2017
July 11, 2017 October 10, 2017

ATTACHMENTS
Investment Policy
























